
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

July 9, 2019 
 

CALENDAR 
 

July 9 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

July 9 
immediately 

following Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

July 9 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

July 23 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Aug 13 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Aug 27 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 

 
C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 

D. MINUTES 
June 25, 2019 – Public Work Session 
June 25, 2019 – Regular Board Meeting 

 
E. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 Appointment of Treasurer and Deputy Treasurer – Kevin Scott began July 1, 

2016 as Treasurer and Erica Purvis as Deputy Treasurer since August 15, 
2016. 
 

 VEBA Resolution – The Business Office recommends approval of the VEBA 
Resolution completing the operational specifications of the Settlement 

Agreement with the Elkhart Teachers Association approved at the February 
12th regular meeting. 
 

 Annual Financial Report – The Annual Report for 2018-2019 is presented for 
Board information. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 



BOARD AGENDA July 9, 2019 
 
 

2 
   

 School Technology Advance Account Petition - The Business Office seeks 
confirmation of the submission of a School Technology Advancement Account 

Petition. 
 

F. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 Board Policy 6111 – Internal Control Standards and Procedures - The 

administration presents proposed new Board Policy 6111 – Internal Control 

Standards and Procedures, for initial review. 
 

 Board Policy 6210 – Fiscal Planning - The administration presents proposed 

new Board Policy 6210 – Fiscal Planning, for initial review. 
 

 Board Policy 6620 – Petty Cash - The administration presents proposed 

revisions to Board Policy 6620 – Petty Cash, for initial review. 

 
 Board Policy 6621 – Cash Change Fund - The administration presents 

proposed revisions to Board Policy 6621 – Cash Change Fund, for initial 

review. 
 

 Board Policy 6800 – Systems of Accounting - The administration presents 

proposed new Board Policy 6800 – Systems of Accounting, for initial 
review. 

 
G. PERSONNEL 

 
 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 

by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 
 

H. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 
 From Audience 

 

 From Superintendent and Staff  
 

 From Board 
 

I. ADJOURNMENT 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

June 25, 2019 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Douglas K. Weaver Babette S. Boling 

Present: Kellie L. Mullins Susan C. Daiber 

 Carolyn R. Morris Rodney J. Dale 

  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 

   

   

ECS Personnel   

Present: Brenda Kolbe Cheryl Waggoner 
 Steven Thalheimer Beth Williams 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board met with representatives of Vala Marketing to discuss the 
marketing efforts of the mascot for Elkhart High School.  Beth Williams, 
director of Federal Programs, reviewed the grant application to the Indiana 

Department of Education for Title 1 being presented at the regular meeting. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:20 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, Vice President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

 

 
 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 
June 25, 2019 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

7:10 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Douglas K. Weaver Babette S. Boling 
Present: Kellie L. Mullins Susan C. Daiber 

 Carolyn R. Morris Rodney J. Dale 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 
   

   
 

Roll Call 

President Doug Weaver called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Board vice president, Kellie Mullins, recited the Elkhart Promise. The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mr. Weaver discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes: 
June 11, 2019 – Public Work Session 

June 11, 2019 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$6,424,926.86 as shown on the June 25, 2019, claims listing.  (Codified 
File 1819-170) 
 

Payment of 

Claims 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  $825 from Mathew 
and Cherese Krueper to Central for the football team; $500 from 

National Flag Football to Central for the purchase of football equipment; 
$500 from Lippert Components to Central for the ElkLogics Robotics 
club; $125,000 from the Bob and Amy Martin for renovations to Rice 

Field and North Side Gym; and $5,000 from Daniel Morrison for the 
Engineering, Technology and Innovation building project. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

The Board received a financial report from Kevin Scott, chief financial 
officer, for the period January 1, 2019 – May 31, 2019, and found it to 
be in order.   

 

Financial Report 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution authorizing the 
transfer of funds from the Operations Fund to the Education Fund.  In 

response to an inquiry, Kevin Scott, chief financial officer, stated this 
transfer is not the balancing ‘sweep’ done periodically.  (Codified File 
1819-171) 

Fund Transfer 
Resolution 

 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution authorizing the 
transfer of funds from the Referendum Tax Levy Fund to the School 

Lunch Fund.  (Codified File 1819-172) 
 

Fund Transfer 
Resolution 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an increase in the price of 

school meals for the 2019-2020 school year; breakfast for elementary 
students will be $1.85, an increase of $.10; middle school students will 
be $2.05, an increase of $.10; and for high school students $2.10, which 

is an increase of $.10.  Lunch prices for elementary students will be 
$2.75, an increase of $.10; for middle school students $3.00, an 
increase of $.10.  Lunch prices for high schools students will increase by 

$.10 to $3.10.  The cost for extra milk will remain the same at $.75.  
Elementary and secondary staff breakfast and lunch fees increased by 
$.10.  The reduced breakfast and lunch prices will remain the same as 

last year – $.30 for breakfast and $.40 for lunch.  In response to Board 
inquiry, Pam Melcher, director of Food Service, stated the district is 
required to adjust the weighted average lunch price by 10 cents using 

the Price Adjustment Calculator provided by the USDA.  (Codified File 
1819-173) 
 

Meal Prices 

By unanimous action, the Board approved food service bids with a grand 
total of all bids being $3,312,423.72 to the lowest, most responsive and 

responsible bidders: food bids to Stanz Food Service and Commercial 
Foods; commodities bid to Stanz Food Service; fresh produce bids to 
Shelton Farms and Piazza Produce; supply bids to Stanz Food Service, 

Wallace Packaging, Daxwell, Commercial Foods, DayMark Safety 
Systems and Webco Packaging; bakery bids to Alpha Kreamo Bakers, 
Aunt Millies and Stanz Food Service; and dairy bid to Dean Foods.  

(Codified File 1819-174) 
 

Food Service 
Bids 

 

Mr. Scott presented the 2020 Budget Timeline for informational 

purposes.   

2020 Budget 

Timeline 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1819-175) 

 

Fundraisers 

 

Mr. Scott provided the current insurance update reporting claims are 
running about 10% ahead of same time last year. 

Monthly 
Insurance 

Report 
 

Jeff Komins, energy education specialist/elementary activities, presented 

the energy audit report.  Mr. Komins stated the overall cost avoidance 
for 2018 was $1,501.988.  He projected a similar result for 2019.  
Continually increases in utility costs are being offset by additional LED 

lighting and motion detectors both inside and outside of buildings.  Mr. 
Komins thanked the Board members for their support has he transitions 
to assistant principal at Cleveland in the fall. 

 

Energy 

Education 
Update 
 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an amended motion to 
revisions to Board Policy 3422.12S – Employees in Miscellaneous 

Positions Compensation Plan, as presented at the June 11th regular 
meeting.  The amendment removed the proposed position of Campus 
Life Coordinator from the three recommended additions including 

Building Services Manager, and Energy and Risk Management Specialist. 
 

Board Policy 
3422.12S 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of a Title 1, 

Part A Grant to the Indiana Department of Education in the amount of 
$3,462,555.22.  (Codified File 1819-176) 
 

Grant 

Submission 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the June 25, 2019 listings.  (Codified File 1819-177) 

 

Conference 
Leave Requests 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

 

Personnel 
Report 

Employment of the following four (4) certified staff members for 
the 2019-2020 school year effective 8/13/19: 

Meghan Brantl - special education at Eastwood 
Nakeyta Hardy - grade 3 at Bristol 

Tonya Stern-Gilbert - grade 1 at Woodland 
EvaMarie Young - music at Memorial 

 

Certified 
Employment 

 

Retirement of certified staff member Steven Stutsman, special 
education at Central, effective 6/6/19, with 27 years of service. 
 

Certified 
Retirement 
 

Administrative re-assignment of certified staff member, Brandon 
Eakins, to director of the Elkhart Area Career Center, effective 
7/1/19. 

 

Administrative 
Reassignment 
 

Resignation of the following eleven (11) certified staff members 
effective on the dates indicated: 

Jerica Burns - counselor at Central, 6/13/19 
Bonita Gingrich - counselor at Central, 6/13/19 
April Kauffman - ENL at Hawthorne, 6/6/19 

Katie Keyser – grade 6 at Daly, 6/6/19 
Rebecca Kmitta - psychologist at ESC, 6/10/19 
William Kovach - director at EACC, 6/30/19 

Patricia Lawson - grade 2 at Pinewood, 6/12/19 
Lisa Martin - pre-K at Beck, 6/6/19 
Heidi Miller - grade 1 at Hawthorne, 6/6/19 

Ashley Perez - kindergarten at Beardsley, 6/6/19 
Samantha Peterson - grade 3 at Cleveland, 6/6/19 
 

Certified 
Resignations 

  



4 
 

Resignation of the following eight (8) classified employees effective 
6/6/19: 

Allyson Bryant - paraprofessional at Eastwood  
Anita Byrd - food service at Beardsley 
Marcelle Dunning - paraprofessional at Daly 

Karen Fraire Vargas - food service at West Side/Monger 
Blanca Gonzales Morales - paraprofessional at Riverview 
Denise Snider - food service at Woodland 

Susan Stephan - paraprofessional at Memorial 
Heidi Trowbridge - secretary at Feeser 
 

Classified 
Resignations 

 

Termination of classified employee, Ellen Springer, food service 
at North Side, in accordance with Board Policy 3039.01S 
effective 6/25/19. 
 

Classified 
Termination 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:45 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Kellie L. Mullins, Vice President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Babette S. Boling, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

Signatures 

 



 

 

 
1 Blazer Blvd. 

Elkhart, in 46516 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  July 1, 2019 
 
TO:   Dr. Steve Thalheimer  
              Board of School Trustees  
 
FROM:  Brian Buckley  
              Elkhart Central Athletic Department  
 
RE:   Donation Approval  
 
A donation in the amount of $10,000.00 has been given to the Elkhart Central High 

School Athletic Department from Robert and Amy Martin. These funds will be used 

for athletic purchases at Elkhart Central High School. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation 

and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

Mr. and Mrs. Robert Martin 

15933 County Road 129 

Bristol, IN 46507 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  June 24, 2019 

 

TO:  Dr. Steve Thalheimer 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Jacquie Rost, Athletic Director 

   

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $500.00 for the girls/boys track team.  

This donation will go towards the purchase of team sweats, team shirts, shoes, equipment, and other 

miscellaneous costs associated with this program. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Vaughn and Cindy Nickell 

51147 Maplewood Drive 

Elkhart, IN 46514 



 

 

 

 

 

 

7/2/2019 

 

VEBA Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, Elkhart Community Schools (ECS) has established Voluntary 
Employees Beneficiary Association (VEBA) Plans which is a type of tax-exempt trust used 
by its members and dependents to pay for eligible medical expenses, AND 
 

WHEREAS, the Elkhart Teachers Association is the exclusive unit recognized 
representing all certificated teachers employed on a regular, temporary, or supplemental 
contract, with the exception of superintendent, assistant superintendent(s), business 
administrator, administrative assistants, directors, assistant directors, supervisors, 
principals, assistant principals, vice-principals, and high school athletic directors, AND 
 

WHEREAS, a Settlement Agreement has been approved by the Board of School 
Trustees and the ETA on February 12, 2019 to establish VEBA II & VEBA IV operational 
specifications.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following VEBA Plan enactments 
are in accordance: 
 

VEBA I: 102% of Forfeitures Recognized during the 2017/18 contract year are re-allocated 
by 7/15/2019. 
 
VEBA II: Teachers employed during the period of 4/1/2016-6/30/2018, and still actively 
employed with the district as of 2/6/2019, will receive re-allocated forfeitures, in the amount 
of $218,400, as agreed upon by ECS and ETA. Re-allocation of forfeitures will be applied 
on an actuarially sound basis that is consistent with the model previously developed for 
distribution of forfeited amounts (i.e. where allocation results are calculated based upon age 
and number years until projected retirement date).  For school year 2018-2019 and 
subsequent future years ECS will retain 20% of forfeitures.  The remaining 80% will be 
reallocated to active participants. 
 
VEBA III: 100% of Forfeitures re-allocated to plan, and vesting effective upon completion of 
10 years of service, reached age of 55 years, provides notice of retirement and is serving as 
administrator at the time of retirement, OR was employed as an Administrator with ECS, 
and is at least 49 years of  age as of May 1st, 2019.  
 
VEBA IV: 100% of Forfeitures are re-allocated to district.  

  



2 | P a g e  
 

Adopted this 9th day of July, 2019 by the Elkhart School Board of Trustees.  

 

Aye       Nay 

_______________________________   ______________________________________ 

_______________________________   ______________________________________ 

_______________________________   ______________________________________ 

_______________________________   ______________________________________ 

_______________________________   ______________________________________ 

_______________________________   ______________________________________ 

_______________________________   ______________________________________ 

























































 

 
 
 
 
 
 
T 
To: Dr. Thalheimer  
        Board of School Trustees  
From: Jason Inman  
Date: July 1st, 2019 
Subject:  School Technology Advancement Account (STAA) 
 

 
 
The Indiana Department of Education makes available low-interest loans for technology projects via 
the School Technology Advancement Account (STAA).  Based on current enrollment, ECS   qualifies

 
for

 a  loan  of   $242,480.   The  Business  Office  seeks  Board  approval  to  take  advantage  of  these  below-
market  interest  rates  to  fund  technology  purchases  that  cannot  be  covered  through  other  sources

 
of

 available  revenue.   These  funds  will  be  used  to  update  our  oldest  classroom  projector  systems
 

and
 introduce  creative  academic  technologies  that  enhance  teaching  and  learning.    

 
The State Board of Education has designated several millions of dollars for technology loans with 
applications being accepted on or before July 12th, 2019.    I am enclosing a copy of the IDOE memo 
on the STAA application process.  I will be requesting your authorization to submit an STAA 
application during the July 9th meeting.  If you have any questions, please contact me at 262-5560. 

 



6/30/2019           

1/4

Petition to the Indiana State Board of Education for Funds from the
School Technology Advancement Account  

Fiscal Year 2020
          

1. Corporation No: *

2305

Corporation Name: *

Elkhart Community Schools

Contact Person: *

Mr.
Prefix

 

First Name

 

Last Name

Contact Email: *

jinman@elkhart.k12.in.us  

jinman@elkhart.k12.in.us

2. Address:

2720 California Road
Street Address

Street Address Line 2

Elkhart
City

IN
State / Province

46514
Postal / Zip Code

United States

Country

3. The amount of advancements range from a minimum of $20,000 to a maximum determined under the
following formula:

STEP ONE: DOE-PE 2017-2018 enrollment *

12,124

Jason Inman



          

2/4

STEP TWO: Divide STEP ONE by 25 *

STEP THREE: Multiply STEP TWO by $500 - Eligible Amount *

4. If there are remaining STAA funds available, please check here to be considered for additional funds, if
available *

 

 

5. Amount requested in additional funds $ *

6. Total $ Amount *

7. Please provide a brief description of the additional project components to be funded and a breakdown of
the cost by building. *

          
         

      

8.
 
Does

 
the

 
school

 
corporation

 
have

 
a
 
current

 
approved

 
3-year

 
technology

 
plan

 
on

 
file

 
with

 
the

 
Department?

*     Yes 

  No

If the school’s three year technology plan is not on file or has been updated, please send a copy to
CommonSchoolFund@doe.in.gov

9. Project Cost Breakdown

a. Technology $ *

b. Other project cost (please describe) *

Installation Services

---- b. Enter the Amount $ *

484.96

$242,480

No

Yes

0

$242,480

$200,690

$41,790

Elkhart Community Schools is not requesting "additional STAA funds" -- only the amount
based on our current enrollment: $249,880. These funds will be used to implement technology projects 
that will enhance student instruction and engage learners throughout the district.

6/30/2019

mailto:CommonSchoolFund@doe.in.gov


6/30/2019           

3/4

c. Other project cost (please describe) *

n/a

---- c. Enter the Amount $ *

0

d. Total $ project cost (sum lines a through c) *

Sources of funds used to finance the project:

e. Common School Technology Loan $ *

f. Other (describe) *

Additional Common School Tech Funds (If available)

---- f. Enter the Amount $: *

g. Total $ sources of funds (line e plus line f) *

10. Please answer the following questions:

a. Outstanding principle amount of all obligations for the school: *

0

b. Current debt service tax rate: *

0.2973

If your corporation is applying for funds to purchase computer hardware and software for student
instruction, complete Form STAA-A. *

 Yes

 No

Form STAA-A Petition to purchase of computer hardware and software for student instruction

1. Briefly describe the new technologies and/or new methodologies being introduced.         

$242,480

$242,480

$0

$242,480

$79,347,720



6/30/2019

Teachers use the projection systems in their classrooms daily for direct student instruction and
group work. The elementary school gyms are both assembly spaces and PD instructional spaces.
The interactive projection systems will be used in gym class, assemblies, and parent nights.
Headsets with microphones will be used for testing and allow students to access digital
curriculum to record their voices while creating videos, podcasts, and screencasts. The Sphero
Education Packs and Mindstorm Lego Coding Robots will be used by a variety of teachers in our
elementary buildings as we include coding in the regular classroom. Elkhart Technology
Ambassadors will provide the individual training at each building. Powered by the Sphero Edu
app, students will learn programming, complete hands-on activities, and share their creations.
Adobe Creative Cloud software licenses will be used by the Middle School yearbook program and
High School web design and sports & entertainment marketing programs.

2. Briefly describe how the project is expected to advance student learning and achievement.

We have projectors in most of our instructional spaces, but many of these are aging, and
replacement parts and bulbs are difficult to find. Projector upgrades with enhanced audio and
improved screens will provide the classrooms with a much-needed boost. As we introduce
coding into the regular classroom, the Sphero Education and Mindstorm Lego coding robots will
offer a unique hands-on element. In an online survey of 1,068 U.S. hiring managers, “Seeking
Creative Candidates: Hiring for the Future,” 94% agree that creativity is critical when evaluating
candidates for a job. Expanded Adobe Creative Cloud licenses will provide our Middle Schools
and High Schools with software tools allowing them to create digital content for web design
courses, yearbook programs, and marketing courses.

3. Briefly describe the method(s) which will be used to evaluate the degree to which the above-stated goal is achieved.

The use of technology and its impact on instructional practice and student performance is
evaluated by principals and by district-level administrators in the area of Instruction and
Learning, Communication and Data, and Technology. Our ongoing and continuous
measurement of the success of the project will allow us to adapt to changing circumstances and
adjust the plan as conditions warrant.

4. For each budget category, state the dollar amount to be spent and describe the goods or services to be purchased:

Pleaese see attached spreadsheet.

Preparer's Name: *

Jason F. Inman

Date *

0907

Month Day Year

2019

Upload File(s): Upload signed certification page and any other pertinent supporting documentation for the
project here. *

4/4



STAA Budget FY 2020

Location Description Cost Units Total Description

All K-8 Locations Headphone Classroom Sets with Microphones $172.28 275 $47,377

Headphones are used for testing 

and allow students to access digital 

curriculum to record their voices 

while creating videos, podcasts, and 

screencasts.

Elementary Buildings Interactive Projector Systems $6,667.00 3 $20,001
Used in gym class, assemblies, and 

parent nights.

Elementary Buildings Sphero Education Pack (Robotics & Coding) $1,199.00 14 $16,786

Used by teachers in elementary 

buildings as we include coding and 

robotics in the regular classroom. 

Elementary Buildings Mindstorm Lego Coding Robots $320.85 10 $3,209

Used by teachers in elementary 

buildings as we include coding and 

robotics in the regular classroom.
Central High School Adobe Creative Cloud Software Licenses $26.00 150 $3,900 Expand Adobe access in labs.

Memorial High School Adobe Creative Cloud Software Licenses $26.00 150 $3,900 Expand Adobe access in labs.
Middle Schools Adobe Creative Cloud Software Licenses $26.00 75 $1,950 Expand Adobe access in labs.

All Schools by Need Lightning cables & bricks $37.00 400 $14,800 iPad charging & classroom use.
All Schools by Need Power strips for iPad charging $16.98 391 $6,639 iPad charging & classroom use.

All Schools by Need Replacement Projectors and Speakers $1,699.00 42 $71,358
These will be used to replace the 

aging projectors in the district. 
All Schools by Need Projector & HDMI Cabling installation $995.00 42 $41,790 To replace the aging projectors.
All Schools by Need Projector Screens / Whiteboards $256.44 42 $10,770 Whiteboard & projector screen.

$242,480Total Project Cost

6/30/2019 Elkhart Community Schools 1



 

 STAA Certification  
 

I certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that the STAA application submitted 
herewith accurately represents a Board approved project.  
 
 
______________________________       ______________________________  
Superintendent Signature      School Board President Signature  
 
 
______________________________       ______________________________  
Superintendent printed name     School Board President printed name  
 
 
Date of Board Approval: _________________  
 

Dated this ______ day of ___________________, 2019 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 6000 Finances

Title Copy of Proposed New INTERNAL CONTROL STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES

Code po6111

Status

Last Reviewed July 9, 2019

 
INTERNAL CONTROL STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES
 
 
The Superintendent shall establish and maintain effective internal control standards and procedures for all funds
received by the School Corporation, including financial grants and awards from Federal or State sources, that provide
reasonable assurance that the program and funds are managed in compliance with applicable Federal and State
statutes, Federal and State regulations, and the terms and conditions of grants and awards made to the Corporation.
 
The Corporation shall have a process that provides reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the following
objectives:
 
 A. effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
  
 B. reliability of reporting for internal and external use; and
  
 C. compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

 
The internal control standards and procedures must provide reasonable assurance that transactions are properly
recorded and accounted for in order to permit the preparation of reliable financial statements and Federal and State
reports; maintain accountability over assets; and demonstrate compliance with Federal and State statutes, Federal
and State regulations, and the terms and conditions of grants and awards.
 
The internal control standards and procedures also must provide reasonable assurance that these transactions are
executed in compliance with Federal and State statutes, Federal and State regulations, and the terms and conditions
of grants and awards that could have a direct and material effect on any grant or award, as well as any other Federal
and State statutes and regulations that are identified in the Federal Compliance Supplements and/or directives of the
State Board of Accounts (SBOA).
 
Additionally, the Corporation’s internal control standards and procedures must provide reasonable assurance that all
Federal and State funds, property, and other assets are safeguarded against loss from theft, fraud, unauthorized use,
or unauthorized disposition.
 
Further, erroneous or irregular variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of any amount of Corporation funds or property
whose source is a Federal grant or award are considered material and therefore are to be reported immediately to the
SBOA as required by Federal and State law.
 
Other than with respect to Corporation funds or property whose source is a Federal grant or award, any erroneous or
irregular variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of Corporation funds or property in excess of:
 
 A. with respect to cash funds:
 
 1. $5,000 in any fund

 
 B. with respect to assets other than cash funds:

 
 1. any asset valued in excess of $5,000

 
are considered material and therefore are to be reported immediately to the SBOA as required by State law.



 
The Corporation shall:
 

 A. comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the
Federal grants and awards;

   

 B. comply with State statutes and regulations related to the management and
control of all funds received by the Corporation;

  

 C. evaluate and monitor its compliance with statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of Federal grants and awards and State and local funds received;

  

 D.
investigate all variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of Corporation funds or
property, document the investigation and its results, and maintain a record of the
investigation and its results;

   

 E. take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including
noncompliance identified in audit findings;

   

 F.

report all misappropriations of Corporation funds or property to the SBOA and
the county prosecuting attorney whenever a Corporation employee has actual
knowledge of or reasonable cause to believe that a misappropriation has
occurred;

   

 G.

 
provide, upon employment and periodically thereafter, training concerning the
internal control standards and procedures established for the Corporation for any
personnel whose official duties include receiving, processing, depositing,
disbursing, or otherwise having access to funds that belong to the Federal
government, State government, the Corporation, or other governmental entities;
and

   

 H.

take reasonable measures to safeguard protected "personally identifiable"
information (PII) and other information the State, awarding agency, or pass-
through entity designates as sensitive or the Corporation considers sensitive
consistent with applicable Federal, State, local, and tribal laws and Corporation
policies regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

  

 

PII is defined at 2 C.F.R. 200.79 as "information that can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual’s identity, either alone or when combined with other
personal or identifying information that is linked or linkable to a specific
individual. "

  

 
However, the definition of PII is not anchored to any single category of
information or technology. Rather, it requires a case-by-case assessment of the
specific risk that an individual can be identified.

 
Suggested resources:
 

 A. Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States;

   

 B.
Internal Control Integrated Framework (commonly referred to as the Green
Book) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission;

  

 C. Circular A-110 Compliance Supplement issued by the U.S. Office of Management
and Budget;

  

 D. Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement issued by the U.S. Office of Management
and Budget; and

  
 E. Internal control guidance issued by the U.S. Department of Education.

 
 



 
 
 
© NEOLA 2018
 
 
 

Legal I.C. 5-11-1-27 2 C.F.R. 200.61-.62 2 C.F.R. 200.79 2 C.F.R. 200.203 State Examiner
Directive 2015-6 (SBOA 11-18-15)



 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 6000 Finances

Title Copy of Proposed New FISCAL PLANNING

Code po6210

Status

Last Reviewed July 9, 2019

 
 
 
6210 - FISCAL PLANNING
 
 
The School Board shall collect and assemble the information necessary to discharge its responsibility for the fiscal
management of the School Corporation and to plan for the financial needs of the educational program. The Board will
strive to maintain both short and long range projections of the Corporation's financial requirements.
 
 
Accordingly, the Board directs the Chief Financial Officer to:
 
 

 A. include cost estimates of all ongoing financial requirements;
 

   

 B.
prepare a long range year-by-year plan for the maintenance and replacement of
facilities and equipment;
 

   

 C. maintain a plan of anticipated local, State, and Federal revenues;
 

   

 D.

meet periodically with the appropriate officials of the local municipality or county
to review planned expenditures and the joint effect of school and community
costs on tax rates;
 

   

 E.
report to the Board any serious financial implications that emerge from the
Corporation's ongoing fiscal planning.
 

 
In addition, the Board directs the Chief Financial Officer to maintain annually a detailed three (3) year forecast of
estimated expenditures and revenues of the Operations Fund.
 
 
 
 
© Neola 2018
 

Legal I.C. 20-26-5-4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 6000 Finances

Title Copy of Proposed Revised PETTY CASH

Code po6620

Status

Adopted November 22, 2016

Last Revised November 22, 2016

Last Reviewed July 9, 2019

6620 - PETTY CASH
 
The School Board recognizes the convenience afforded the day-by-day operation of the schools by the establishment of a Petty
Cash Fund not to exceed $500.
 
The Board shall allow a small petty cash fund to be established provided controls are imposed by the Superintendent to prevent
abuse of such a fund or total spending to exceed the fund appropriation.
 
The custodian of the petty cash fund shall ensure that the fund in his/her care shall be disbursed only for minor expenditures not
readily deferred. No petty cash fund may be used to circumvent the purchasing procedures required by law and the policies of
the Board. A receipt for petty cash must be signed by the person making the request and include such supporting documentation
as may be appropriate. The petty cash box must be secured daily.
 
The custodian of the petty cash fund shall prepare a schedule of disbursements when the funds available have declined to less
than twenty-five percent (25%) of the full amount authorized and shall show the disbursements by line account numbers. The
custodian shall submit the schedule to the Treasurer with a voucher requesting replenishment in like amount.
 
The petty cash fund will be closed out for audit at the end of the school year and unused funds will be returned to the
depository.
 
© Neola 20182011

Legal I.C. 36-1-8-3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 6000 Finances

Title Copy of Proposed Revised CASH CHANGE FUND

Code po6621

Status

Adopted November 22, 2016

Last Revised November 22, 2016

Last Reviewed July 9, 2019

6621 - CASH CHANGE FUND
 
The School Board recognizes the convenience of cash change fund in the day-to-day operation of the schools in the School
Corporation.
 
The Board authorizes the establishment of cash change funds by means of a check drawn on the school's extra-curricular
account in an amount designated by the Corporation Treasurer. The funds shall be under the direction of the Building Treasurer
who may designate a building cashier who shall be responsible for providing change as needed and for the safekeeping and
accounting of cash change funds in their possession. A cash change fund shall not be used as a petty cash fund.
 
When the fund is no longer needed, all remaining monies shall be returned to the school's extra-curricular account.
 
© Neola 20182011

Legal I.C. 36-1-8-2



 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 6000 Finances

Title Copy of Proposed New SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING

Code po6800

Status

Last Revised July 9, 2019

 
6800 - SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING
 
 
It is the policy of the School Board that a chart of accounts be established in accordance with the requirements of the
State Board of Accounts for the accounting of all School Corporation funds.
 
 
The Treasurer shall be responsible for the proper accounting of all Corporation funds. S/He shall ensure that
expenditures are budgeted under and charged against those accounts which most accurately describe the purpose for
which such monies are to be or have been spent. Wherever appropriate and practicable, salaries of individual
employees, expenditures for single pieces of equipment, and the like shall be prorated under the several accounts
which most accurately describe the purposes for which such monies are to be or have been spent.
 
 
A report of the revenues and expenditures in the Education Fund, Operations Fund, and all other active Fund(s) shall
be made to the Board on a monthly basis by the Treasurer.
 
 
© NEOLA 2018
 
 







 
INTERNAL MEMO 

 

JJJJ....CCCC....    Rice Educational Services CenterRice Educational Services CenterRice Educational Services CenterRice Educational Services Center    

2720 Cali2720 Cali2720 Cali2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514fornia Road • Elkhart, IN 46514fornia Road • Elkhart, IN 46514fornia Road • Elkhart, IN 46514    

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  July 9, 2019 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 
 

a. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 
2019-20 school year: 

 
Rhiannon Harrison  ESC/District Coach 
 
Kristin Mayer   Bristol/Kindergarten 
 
Samuel Puchalski  Daly/Grade 6 
 
Austin Ward   North Side/Language Arts 
 

 
b. Administrative  Appointment – The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment effective August 1, 2019: 
 
Kristine Weimer  Osolo/Principal 
 

 
c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employee: 

 
Paula Grandison Eastwood/Assistant Principal  30 Years of Service 

 
 

d. Medical Leave – We recommend the approval of a medical leave for the following employee: 
 

Timothy Borg   Pierre Moran/Health 
Begin:  8/13/19   End:  6/3/20 
 

 
e. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 
Nina Jaebker   West Side/Counselor 
Began:  10/22/18   Resign:  6/13/19 
 
Chloe McRobbie  Pierre Moran/Social Studies 
Began:  1/7/19   Resign:  6/6/19 



 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 
Erin Roe  
Began:  8/14/17  

  

 

CLASSIFIED 
 

a. Reassignment – We request
Administrative Employee Group to Miscellaneous

William Drehmel  
 
Roderic Roberson
 
 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees:
 
Heather Basse  
Began: 9/17/18  
 
Lindsay Evans  
Began: 9/22/14  
 
Brian Hunt  
Began: 1/2/19  
 
Lindsay Lucchese 
Began: 8/17/17  
 
Kenneth Peterson 
Began: 8/13/18  
 
Ursula Taylor  
Began: 2/7/19  
 
 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employees:

Janet Redding  
  Began: 11/17/93 
     

            
 

d. Unpaid Leave Request  – We recommend an unpaid leave of the following employee
 
Anita Frankenberger
Begin: 8/26/19  

  

 ESC/Psychologist 
 Resign:  6/7/19                                                                                                              

request the reassignment of the following classified employees
Administrative Employee Group to Miscellaneous Employee Group effective 7/1/19

  Building Services/Building Services Manager

Roderic Roberson  ESC/Energy and Risk Management Specialist

We report the resignation of the following classified employees:

 Bristol/Social Worker 
 Resign: 6/10/19 

 Pinewood/Social Worker 
 Resign: 6/10/19 

 Transportation/Mechanic 
 Resign: 7/8/19 

  Eastwood/Permanent Substitute 
 Resign: 6/6/19 

  Technology/Service Desk Coordinator
 Resign: 7/14/19 

 Bristol/Food Service 
 Resign: 6/6/19 

We report the retirement of the following classified employees:   

 Pierre Moran/Paraprofessional 
 Retire: 6/6/19 
 25 Years of Service 

We recommend an unpaid leave of the following employee

Anita Frankenberger  Transportation/Bus Driver 
 End: 11/1/19 

Resign:  6/7/19                                                                                                              

of the following classified employees from 
Employee Group effective 7/1/19: 

Building Services Manager 

ESC/Energy and Risk Management Specialist 

 

 

Technology/Service Desk Coordinator 

 

We recommend an unpaid leave of the following employee: 



 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

e. Termination  – We report the termination of the following classified employees:

Sybil Lee  
Began: 8/17/11  
 
Shamaghia Washington
Began: 2/23/18  
 
 

 

We report the termination of the following classified employees:

 Pierre Moran/Secretary 
 End: 7/9/19 

aghia Washington Hawthorne/Food Service 
 End: 7/9/19 

We report the termination of the following classified employees: 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  July 9, 2019 

 

Addendum to Personnel report 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Agreement – We recommend Board approval of an agreement related to the payment of severance 

benefits. 

 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employee: 

 

Dawn McGrath  ESC/Director of Special Services 

Began:  4/30/14   Resign:  7/10/19 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

a. Agreement – We recommend Board approval of an agreement related to compensation for an 

employee. 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Public Work Session June 25 2019
	Minutes - Regular Meeting  - June 25, 2019
	Gift Acceptance - CHS Athletics
	Gift Acceptance - MHS Athletics
	VEBA Resolution
	Annual Financial Report 2018-2019
	Fundraisers
	STAA Application FY 2020
	STAA Application FY 2020.pdf
	STAA Memo to Board.pdf
	FINAL 2019 Petition to The Indiana State Board of Education for Funds-Copy-Copy.pdf
	STAA 2019_20  Budget.pdf
	Memo STAA .pdf

	STAA Certification Form_2019.pdf

	Board Policy 6111
	Board Policy 6210
	Board Policy 6620
	Board Policy 6621
	Board Policy 6800
	Conference Leave Requests
	Personnel Report



